
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of City Council Work Session 
& Regular City Council Meeting  

 
The City Council of the City of Newport will hold a work session on Monday, October 7, 2013, at 12:00 
P.M., followed by regular City Council meeting at 6:00 P.M. The work session will be held in Conference 
Room A at City Hall, and the City Council meeting will be held in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 
located at 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, Oregon 97365. A copy of the agenda follows. 
 
The meeting locations are accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 
hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder 541.574.0613. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, 
and discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the work session and/or meeting. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 Monday, October 7, 2013 – 12:00 P.M. 
Conference Room A 

 
I. Additional Work Session Items Not Listed on the Agenda (for this and future work sessions) 

II. Review and Discussion of Draft General Legal Services Agreement 
 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, October 7, 2013 -6:00 P.M.  

 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to 
the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the City Council Chamber. 
Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the Public Comment 
section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter 
is discussed by the City Council.  
 

I. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

II. Call to Order and Roll Call   
 

III. Additions/Deletions and Approval of Agenda 
 

IV. Public Comment 



 

 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item 
not listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person with a 
maximum of 15 minutes for all items. Speakers may not yield their time to other. 
 

V. Proclamations, Recognitions & Special Presentations 
A. National Magic Week 
B. Rogue Ales 25th Anniversary Days 
C. Great Oregon Shakeout 
D. Aviation Appreciation Month 
E. National Fire Prevention Week October 6-12, 2013 
F. Fire Badge Ceremony 

 
VI. Consent Calendar 

The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single 
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered 
separately on request. 
 

A. Approval of City Council Minutes from the Special City Council Meetings and Executive 
Sessions of September 9, 2013, September 11, 2013, and September 30, 2013; Work 
Session, Executive Session and Regular Meeting of September 16, 2013 (Hawker) 

 
VII. Officer’s Reports 

A. Mayor’s Report  
B. City Manager’s Report  

1. Project Management Report 
 

VIII. Discussion Items and Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of 
potential future action items. 
 

A. City Manager’s Evaluation Process as Developed by Council Sub-Group 
 

IX. Public Hearings – 7:00 P.M. 
 

A. Public Hearing and Consideration of Ordinance No. 2060 for Annexing a South Beach 
Property Owned By Spy, LLC into the Corporate Limits of the City of Newport and 
Withdrawing the Property from the Newport Rural Fire Protection District and Lincoln 
County Library District.  
 

X. Action Items 
Citizens will be provided an opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. (Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances.) 

 
A. Re-envisioning the City’s Role in Supporting the Visual Arts. (Tokos) 
B. Authorization to Proceed with Partitioning the Visual Arts Center Property. (Tokos) 
C. Consideration of Ordinance No. 2058 Regarding Taxi Cab Endorsements to Business 

Licenses (Hawker) 
D. Formation of Business License Review Task Force 

 



 

 

XI. Council Reports and Comments 
 

XII. Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 

XIII. Adjournment 













 



September 9, 2013 
11:00 A.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Newport met in a Special Meeting, on the above date, in 
Conference Room A of the Newport City Hall. Allen, Roumagoux, Sawyer, Beemer and 
Swanson were present. Saelens and Busby were excused. 
  
Staff attending was as follows: Smith, Hawker. 
 
Recruitment consultants Bob Gibson and Jeri Knudsen were in attendance. 
 
Also in attendance was Larry Coonrod from the Newport News-Times. 
 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Swanson and Allen, to enter executive 
session to discuss the employment of a City Manager. The motion carried unanimously 
in a voice vote, and Council entered executive session at 11:06 A.M. 
 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Swanson, to return to the special meeting. 
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its special 
meeting at 1:12 P.M. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:12 P.M. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder  Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 
 
 
 
 



September 11, 2013 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Newport met in a Special Meeting, on the above date, in 
Conference Room A of the Newport City Hall. Allen, Roumagoux, Sawyer, Busby, Beemer 
and Swanson were present. Saelens was excused. 
  
Staff attending was as follows: Smith, Hawker. 
 
Recruitment consultant Bob Gibson was in attendance. 
 
Also in attendance was Dave Morgan from News Lincoln County. 
 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to enter executive session to discuss 
the employment of a City Manager. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and 
Council entered executive session at 12:06 A.M. 
 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to return to the special meeting. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its special meeting at 
1:10 P.M. 
 
A brief discussion ensued regarding from which account the expenses for City Manager 
finalist travel would come from. Staff was asked to determine this and report to Council. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding a revision of the timeline attached to Resolution No. 3631 
to allow for a telephone interview process and to change some of the dates, including the 
interview dates. Staff will bring a new resolution, revising Resolution No. 3631, to the next 
City Council meeting or Council consideration. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:17 P.M. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder  Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 



September 30, 2013 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Newport met in a Special Meeting, on the above date, in 
Conference Room A of the Newport City Hall. Allen, Roumagoux, Sawyer, Busby, Beemer 
and Saelens were present. 
  
Staff attending was as follows: Hawker, Tokos, Gazewood, and Protiva. 
 
Also in attendance was Dave Morgan from News Lincoln County and Dennis Anstine from 
the Newport News-Times. 
 
Roumagoux asked for a motion to enter executive session. 
 
MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to enter executive session pursuant 
to ORS 192.660(2)(e) to discuss real property transactions regarding the potential 
purchase of property. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council 
entered executive session at 12:03 P.M. 
 
MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Busby, to return to the special meeting. The 
motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its special meeting at 
12:55 P.M. 
 
Roumagoux proposed removing the potential sale of the Visual Arts Center from the 
October 7, 2013 City Council agenda. She reported that she had met with Catherine 
Rickbone, Executive Director of the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts, and suggested 
that the arts community begin looking at the revisioning of the VAC, and come back in 
four to six months with possible alternatives for the next 30 years. It was noted that 
cleaning up the property boundaries is a good idea. Allen suggested a proposal containing 
the views of Tokos and Roumagoux. Sawyer noted that there is a significant grass roots 
campaign regarding this issue. Tokos reported that the property partitioning and outreach 
can happen concurrently with a further discussion six to eight months in the future. Tokos 
noted that he will develop a list of questions, including whether it is in the public interest 
to own the facility, or could the use be accommodated elsewhere; and how is the facility 
maintained, among other questions. Roumagoux noted that she believes that the 
collection of information from the arts community, utilizing an informal process, will help 
in developing responses to the city’s questions. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the selection of a citizen panel for the City Manager 
interviews. It was agreed that the following individuals would be asked to serve on the 
panel: Mark Watkins, Patricia Patrick-Joling, Janet Webster, Robert Ornelas, Don Mann, 
and alternates are Ken Riley or Rob Thompson and Mark Fisher. 
 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:20 P.M. 



 
 
 
___________________________________ ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder  Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 
 
 



September 16, 2013 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 
Councilors present: Saelens, Roumagoux, Beemer, Busby, Allen, Swanson, and Sawyer. 

 
Staff present: Smith, Hawker, Gazewood, Tokos, and Paige. 
 
Media present: Dave Morgan from News Lincoln County. 
 
Others present: Dennis Bartoldus, Sunnetta Ransom, and others interested in the 
business license issue. 
 
Roumagoux called the meeting to order and roll was taken. 
 
1. Roumagoux asked whether there were additional items to discuss at this meeting. 

Saelens noted that there needs to be a city representative to the Solid Waste Advisory 
Committee which plans to meet on September 24 from 3 – 5 P.M. Beemer noted that 
he would be willing to represent the city if Tim Gross is unable to participate. 

2. It was suggested that there be a brief discussion regarding the purchase of Fire 
Department apparatus, and an update on the general legal proposals. 

 3. MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Saelens, to enter executive session 
pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h) to consult with legal counsel regarding litigation or 
litigation likely to occur involving Teevin Brothers, and pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(e) 
to discuss real property transactions. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, 
and Council entered executive session at 12:04 P.M. 

 
 MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Saelens, to leave executive session and 

return to the Council work session. The executive session adjourned at 12:59 P.M. 
4. MOTION was made by Allen, seconded by Beemer to direct Emily Jerome, attorney 

with Speer Hoyt, to notify LUBA that the City of Newport reserves the right to file a 
reply brief if necessary after the respondents/interveners have filed their brief in 
response to the petitioner’s opening brief in the Teevin Brothers matter. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

5. Council directed that an action item be added to tonight’s meeting to direct staff to 
begin to position real property for sale. Tokos stated that he would specify that the 
property in question is the VAC. 

6. Smith distributed a financial update prepared by Gazewood who had to leave this 
meeting early. 

7. A discussion ensued regarding business licenses. Busby reported that he requested 
that this item be placed on the agenda as it seems like there are a number of issues 
and potential issues relative to business licensing. He suggested Council consider the 
formation of a group to study the issue. Busby noted that he had twice requested 
information regarding business licenses, and that based on the revenue numbers, he 



assumes there are approximately 1,300 business licenses. Busby reviewed some of 
the issues he has found with the current licensing ordinance, including: rates; definition 
of business; enforcement; ownership and management; lack of data; enforcement 
plan; application and approval process time; exempt parties obtaining a license 
despite there being no fee; deliveries by transient commercial businesses; and on-line 
businesses. Saelens suggested re-examining how to create a better business license 
process. He noted that the data is important even without a fee. Roumagoux asked 
what the staff cost is to process and administer business licenses. Allen noted that 
there is a valid need for a business license ordinance. He added that the goal is how 
to be fair and equitable. Allen suggested the formation of a group or task force 
comprised of City Councilors and stakeholders. Beemer suggested that the task force 
be chaired by Busby. Tokos noted that having worked in both types of communities, 
he prefers the business license. Sawyer stated that the matter should be examined 
regularly. Roumagoux asked how to regulate “underground” businesses. 

 
 Bartoldus noted that the requirement for the Embarcadero to purchase individual 

business licenses for all renting units has caused the unintended consequence of 
requiring those unit owners to meet vacation rental standards rather than hotel 
standards. He added that in looking at vacation rental dwellings, hotels, and 
timeshare, these are all similar uses with three different standards. He added that his 
client is comfortable with the business license requirement, but the upgrade for health 
and safety issues is a very real problem. Allen noted that Bartoldus input could be 
beneficial with respect to these other issues as they are discussed and reviewed. A 
discussion ensued regarding the “administrative rules” for business licenses, and 
Allen noted that these are a big issue. 

 
 Bartoldus stated that the uniform fee is more simplified and workable, and that some 

provisions of the ordinance are good, need to continue, and make sense. 
 
 Smith noted that once a business is identified, the city has a responsibility to enforce 

the code. Tokos noted that the city needs to issue the endorsements and licenses 
under the current code. He added that the vacation rental dwelling standards are 
straightforward. 

 
 Bartoldus noted that if the city changes standards that all establishments similar to the 

Embarcadero should meet those standards, and that all businesses used for the same 
purpose should be treated the same relative to endorsements and health and safety 
standards. 

 
 Allen suggested a grandfather clause for exemptions. He noted that requirements 

should be equitable among similar businesses. Allen noted that the task force could 
make recommendations on some of these issues. Allen suggested that a Planning 
Commissioner be a task force member as there are interrelated issues. Saelens noted 
that Council needs to define the issues for the task force. Allen suggested that the 
membership and scope of work of the task force be discussed at a future meeting. 

 



 Tokos reported that he has the capacity to allow for delayed installation of upgrades 
required by the VRD ordinance. He reiterated that the business licenses and 
endorsements need to go out to applicants. It was suggested that Tokos and Bartoldus 
could work on language for delayed upgrade requirements. 

 
 Allen suggested that the issue of a business license task force could be on the agenda 

of the next evening meeting as a discussion item, and that the establishment of the 
task force could occur at a later meeting where the membership and scope of work is 
defined. 

8. Smith reported that Gazewood had to leave but had distributed the financial update. 
9. A discussion ensued relative to the proposals received for general legal services, Allen 

stated that on August 19, when this item was last discussed, he mentioned to Mayor 
Roumagoux and the City Council that he was considering looking at the general legal 
services position, so he declared a conflict of interest and left the room. He noted that 
subsequently, on August 23, he notified Roumagoux and the City Council that he was 
no longer interested in the position and no longer has to declare a conflict of interest. 
It was noted that proposers for general legal services would be interviewed at a special 
meeting on Friday, September 20, and that the agenda would contain an action item 
relative to naming a person or firm to provide general legal services. 

10. A discussion ensued regarding the proposed purchase of a fire engine. Allen inquired 
whether the proposed fire engine purchase had gone through a formal bidding 
process. It was reported that Paige would have the information on the purchasing 
guidelines and findings of fact at the evening meeting. Busby noted that the city is 
spending 4.2 million dollars more this year than it is taking in. Allen asked whether the 
funding for the fire engine needed to be determined by the evening meeting, or 
whether Council could simply state that it will purchase the fire engine. Allen noted 
Gazewood’s concern regarding the lease/purchase of the equipment and asked what 
Council will do if Gazewood is unable to attend the evening meeting. Saelens noted 
that unless it is critical, the purchase could be rescheduled to another session. Allen 
suggested keeping the item on the evening agenda and postponing a decision if 
necessary. 

11. It was noted that a Town Hall meeting was scheduled on September 30, at the Boone 
Center at Newport High School. 

12. It was noted that the public hearing on the taxicab endorsement for Ken’s Cab will not 
occur at this evening’s meeting. 

 
Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:39 P.M. 



 



September 16, 2013 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Beemer, Allen, Roumagoux, Busby, 
Swanson, Sawyer, and Saelens were present. 
 Staff present was Interim City Manager Smith, City Recorder Hawker, Community 
Development Director Tokos, Interim Finance Director Gazewood, Public Works 
Director Gross, Fire Chief Paige, and Police Chief Miranda. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Council and the audience participated in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
 Ken Franklin, representing Ken’s Cab (a taxicab endorsement applicant), addressed 
Council regarding the difficulty of the current taxicab endorsement ordinance. 
Roumagoux noted that Council will consider a new taxicab endorsement ordinance. 
 Todd Butterfield spoke in support of the taxicab endorsement for Ken Franklin.  
 Allen noted that the public hearing on the taxicab endorsement application by Ken’s 
Cab is still scheduled for 7:00 P.M. 
 Rae Hail addressed Council regarding ADA barriers and 8.20.015(E) of the Newport 
Municipal Code. Rae reported that he is President of the Blind Veterans Association and 
a volunteer for ADA Northwest. He distributed hand-outs to Council. He stated that there 
is a problem with 8.20.015(E) of the Municipal Code in that it allows dogs to be off-leash 
as long as they are under voice control. Hail stated that when dogs are allowed to run 
free, they become a barrier. He added that disabled citizens need to feel that they have 
equal protection under the law. He noted that there are paths of travel, covered by the 
ADA, in the city where there are trees, brush, and other sidewalk obstructions, making it 
difficult or impossible to use by disabled individuals. 
 Robert Clark reported that he has had many encounters with dogs that are off-leash. 
He added that often, the dog is out of control, and the pet owner cannot control it, and 
he has to get his dog under control. Clark stated that his dog cannot work when she is 
being hassled by another dog. He noted that six-foot leashes do not work on narrow 
sidewalks with other dogs. Clark spoke regarding overhanging vegetation and other 
sidewalk obstructions. He stated that there are at least five areas with sidewalk 
obstructions between 3rd Street and JC Market. He added that some people park on the 
sidewalk. He stated that he would like to have something done about the obstructions. 
He reviewed several areas with sidewalk obstructions, including one on Coast Street 
where the tree grows over the sidewalk; two bushes in the same area; low hanging trees 
on Coast Street around the corner from Green Gables; a bush growing over the 
sidewalk, covering half the width of the sidewalk; a van parked on the sidewalk; and a 
bush on top of a retaining wall growing over the sidewalk on the north side of Olive 
Street after Brook Street; a picket fence that has become overgrown across from 



Literacy Park; the entire block across from the American Legion has a lot of vegetation 
growing over the sidewalk; and shore pines that are emerging on Coast Street near the 
PAC.  
 Patty Hail reported that there are two big access issues along the sidewalks. One is 
the maintenance of sidewalks as some are broken; and the other is dogs that are off-
leash. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
 Allen noted that items discussed at the work session are included on the revised 
agenda.  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Approval of City Council minutes from the work session, executive session, and 
regular meeting of September 3, 2013; 
 B. Acknowledgment of accounts paid for August 2013; 
 C. OLCC application – Asiatico Sushi Bar. 
 
 MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Sawyer, to approve the consent 
calendar with the changes to the minutes as noted by Allen. There were questions 
regarding the accounts paid related to the airport golf cart and the right-of-way 
purchase. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 Mayor’s Report. Roumagoux reported that Council had met to begin reviewing the 
applications for the City Manager position. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had met with Dave Price, director of the Small 
Business Center, for OCCC. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had attended the city staff barbecue. 
 Roumagoux reported that she received a letter from Jill Ledet requesting that 
Council consider creating additional public vending spaces. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had received a letter from Meals on Wheels thanking 
the city for its donation to the program. 
 Roumagoux reported that she had received a letter from Gabe Wilson resigning from 
the Destination Newport Committee due to work and family commitments. Council 
thanked Wilson for her work and commitment to the city. 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Smith reported that the monthly departmental reports were 
included in the packet. 
 Smith reported that he had attended the “Real Heroes” breakfast where Chris 
Rampley, from the Fire Department, was recognized as a real hero for saving a 
fisherman who had fallen from his boat. Smith noted that there is an article in the 
Statesman Journal regarding the folks recognized as “real heroes.” 



 Smith reported that he spoke at the recent Leadership Lincoln session as a part of a 
panel that included David Bigelow, Tom Rinearson, and Lyle Mattson. 
 Allen asked whether a meeting of the Port Pedestrian Safety Task Force had been 
scheduled. Tokos agreed to follow-up. 
 Allen asked about the safety zone grant that the Police Department is working 
outside the city limits, and particularly why the Lincoln County Sheriff’s Office and OSP 
had declined to accept the grant due to personnel shortages. He asked whether the city 
had similar personnel shortages and whether the city is paying overtime. Miranda 
reported that the staffing is primarily overtime that is funded by the grant, and that the 
grant ends at the end of September. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Consideration of Application for a SAFER Grant for the Staffing for Adequate Fire 
and Emergency Response. Paige reported that the issue before Council is the 
consideration of support for an application for a SAFER Grant, noting that it is a program 
that FEMA offers every year. He added that the city has not been successful in obtaining 
the grant in the past. He stated that this year, staff have applied for a grant to hire two 
firefighters in relief positions. He recommended Council support of the grant noting that 
there is no requirement for the city to provide matching funds. He stated that after two 
years, a decision will have to be made regarding whether to keep the two positions 
assuming the grant is successful. He added that the chances of getting the grant are 
slim due to the number of applications. He stated that if the city is offered the grant, the 
matter will return to Council for acceptance of the grant. He noted that he is asking for 
approval to submit the grant, adding that the city likely will not know whether it receives 
the grant until next summer because of the low priority category that the city is in. Allen 
stated that the grant is only for two years, and there is no expectation of continued 
employment for the two employees. He asked whether the employees will become 
union members, and whether that will be an issue, if after two years, the city has to 
release them. Paige reported that in this situation, the bargaining agreement layoff 
provision would apply. Allen asked whether Paige would be clear and candid with the 
employees hired that this is a limited term position. Paige reported that he would be up 
front with the two employees. MOTION was made by Swanson, seconded by Beemer, 
to approve the submittal of the SAFER Grant application for the purpose of increasing 
career firefighter staffing levels. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of Resolution No. 3650 Regarding the Payment of Franchise Fees by 
City-Owned Utilities. Gazewood reported that the issue before Council is consideration 
of Resolution No. 3650 which would formally approve the five percent fees of gross 
water and wastewater revenue as set forth in the annual budget document. He noted 
that this action should have occurred in 2001. He added that it was included in the 
budget; went through the budget adoption phase; and continued each fiscal year after 
that. Gazewood reviewed percentages and amounts of funding. He noted that the 
resolution provides for a monthly transfer of the monies and does not include proceeds 
from bond sale proceeds or interest earnings. Allen noted that the reason this is being 
presented tonight is that the Infrastructure Task Force is talking about how to pay for 
infrastructure improvements by looking internally in the budget to bolster the water and 



sewer funds.  He added that Council may see some recommendation on whether the 
city should continue the fee in lieu of concept for the next fiscal year. Allen noted that 
this resolution acknowledges what the city has done for the last ten years. MOTION was 
made by Beemer, seconded by Busby and Allen, to adopt Resolution No. 3650, a 
resolution regarding the payment of fees in lieu of franchise fees by city-owned utilities 
with a revision to Finding 2 to read as follows: “The City has charged or collected such 
fees since fiscal year 2002-03 through the annual budget approval and adoption 
process.” The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration and Discussion of Potential Sale of the Visual Arts Center. Catherine 
Rickbone, Executive Director of the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts (OCCA), which 
manages the PAC and the VAC for the city, appeared before Council regarding the 
potential sale of the VAC. She stated that the discussion of the potential sale of the VAC 
is a surprise. She noted that several OCCA board members are in attendance at this 
meeting. She asked when and how public comment will be taken on the potential sale of 
the VAC, and how the matter will proceed. Tokos reported that Council is considering 
whether to position the property for potential sale. He added that a public hearing would 
be scheduled in the late winter or early spring if Council accepts what is outlined in the 
staff report. He noted that if this property is going to be sold; steps need to be taken to 
make that possible, and that those steps include a partitioning process; an appraisal 
following the partition process; and a revisiting of the management agreement with 
OCCA. He reiterated that there would be a public hearing at which Council would 
consider whether it is in the public interest to sell the property. Tokos noted that there 
would be an investment of approximately $5,000 - $8,000 to get to the point of the public 
hearing, and that the CDD budget has sufficient professional service funds to cover this 
expense. Allen reported that direction was given to Tokos to indicate to the public that 
the City Council is considering this potential sale and to identify the appropriate steps to 
position the property for sale. 
 Mark McConnell noted that Council had held an executive session regarding real 
property transactions, and asked whether the sale of the VAC was discussed during the 
executive session. Allen noted that if McConnell listens to the audio file from the earlier 
work session, he will hear the direction to Tokos to bring this information forward tonight. 
McConnell asked who is behind this particular building being looked at for a potential 
sale. Roumagoux noted that Council is looking at all city-owned properties. Gross noted 
that part of the budget discussion was focused on where the city spends money, and 
that there has been more spent on this building due to its age and conditions. 
McConnell asked whether other properties will be included on the list of potential sale 
properties, including the FBO and the Abbey Street Pier building. He stated that it was a 
mistake not having more public input ahead of time. Allen noted that one of the reasons 
Council included this item on the agenda was to begin a discussion about this property 
and other properties. McConnell noted that the revised agenda was not posted on the 
city’s website, and that this item did not have to come up at this meeting.  
 Rickbone reported that this matter was first brought to her attention a few days ago, 
and expressed concern about the future of the PAC. She noted that OCCA is embarking 
on a 4.3 million dollar capital campaign, and that she would not recommend continuing 
with that campaign if the PAC may be considered for sale.  



 Wendy Engler asked what other properties the city may be considering for potential 
sale. Allen noted that this evening’s discussion is the beginning of the process. He 
added that if the proposed motion passes that the next meeting agenda could contain a 
discussion item on the subject so that Council could hear the issues from OCCA. He 
added that the city can provide informal public engagement while preparing for a more 
formal process. McConnell suggested tabling this issue and placing it on the next 
agenda. Engler asked why the VAC was chosen for potential sale. Allen noted that 
Council is looking at other properties. He added that some recommendations have 
come from the Infrastructure Task Force, and that McConnell is aware of those 
discussions. Swanson suggested tabling the issue and discussing it in a few weeks. 
Busby reiterated that the VAC is not the only city property being discussed. Allen noted 
that the city website has a link to an inventory of city-owned property. 
 After further discussion, MOTION was made by Swanson, seconded by Saelens, to 
table this matter until October 7, 2013. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consideration of City Manager Evaluation as Developed by Council Sub-Group. 
Allen reported that the City Manager Evaluation Process Sub-Group had submitted a 
final draft of the evaluation document/process. He reviewed the proposed process. It 
was agreed to table action on the City Manager evaluation process until the October 7, 
2013 meeting at which time the draft document and Sub-Group minutes will be 
presented for Council review and approval.  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 Public Hearing on Application for Taxicab Endorsement to a Business License by 
Ken’s Cab. Roumagoux opened the public hearing on the application for a taxicab 
endorsement to a business license application filed by Ken’s Cab at 7:16 P.M. A 
discussion ensued regarding a draft revised taxicab endorsement ordinance. Franklin 
noted that his business could not survive a three-month waiting period for the ordinance 
to become effective. It was suggested that the ordinance could be an emergency 
ordinance so that it could become effective after adoption by Council. There was no 
further comment, and the hearing was closed at 7:20 P.M.  
 
 Public Hearing on and Consideration of Resolution No. 3649 Amending Resolution 
No. 3631 – A Resolution Establishing the Hiring Standards, Criteria, Policy Directives, 
and a Timeline for the Recruitment, and Hiring of the City Manager for the City of 
Newport, and Specifically Amending the Timeline (Exhibit A). Roumagoux opened the 
public hearing on Resolution No. 3649 at 7:20 P.M. Saelens recused himself. She asked 
for the staff report. Hawker reported that the issue before Council is to seek public input 
on Resolution No. 3649 that amends the timeline for recruitment of a City Manager. 
 Roumagoux asked for public comment. There was none. 
 Roumagoux closed the public hearing for Council deliberation at 7:25 P.M. It was 
suggested that the last “whereas clause” read “telephone interview screening process” 
to be consistent with the wording in the timeline. 
 MOTION was made by Beemer, seconded by Allen, to adopt Resolution No. 3649, 
amending Exhibit A of Resolution No. 3631 regarding changes to the timeline 
(established in Resolution No. 3631) for hiring a City Manager as amended. The motion 



carried unanimously in a voice vote. Hawker noted that the new timeline includes an 
executive session to be held Friday which she will notice along with a special meeting to 
include interviews with proposers for general legal services. 
 

LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 
 Roumagoux called the meeting of the Local Contract Review Board (City Council 
acting as such) to order. 
 
 Consideration of Purchase of Fire Department Apparatus. Paige reported that the 
issue before the City Council, acting as the Local Contract Review Board, is 
consideration of whether the Fire Department should procure a new “demonstrator” fire 
engine to replace a 1994 fire engine. He recommended that the lease/purchase of one 
HME “demonstrator” fire engine, for a total negotiated price of $401,425, be approved, 
and that the 1994 International/KME fire engine be declared surplus and the city receive 
a $10,000 trade-in credit toward the “demonstrator.” Paige reviewed the need for this 
fire engine and how it would be funded. He reported that Gazewood recommended not 
purchasing this apparatus, but to look at a five year special levy. Paige recommended a 
capital equipment bond measure as it would be a more comprehensive way to deal with 
needs.  
 Gazewood reviewed potential financing terms. He noted that the General Fund 
operating budget supports a lot of departments. He added that the Police Department 
has a continual need to replace vehicles, and subsidies are provided to the Parks and 
Recreation Department and other departments from the General Fund. He noted that 
the General Fund has its own problems with debt structure and annual payments. He 
reviewed the fiscal impact over a six-year period noting that the impact would be a 1.1 
million dollar outlay from the General Fund over this period of time for the Fire 
Department. Gazewood added that he is concerned with the overall impact to the 
General Fund and its ability to meet and maintain service levels in all departments. He 
noted that if the water and sewer fees in lieu of are removed, the budget will be further 
reduced by approximately $377,000. Gazewood stated that while the fire engine is a 
good deal, the purchase would have a huge impact on the General Fund over the next 
five years. He noted that there are better ways to pay for capital rolling stock, and this 
would not be the only city that addressed the issue of purchasing rolling stock without 
using general operating monies. Gazewood stated that a local option levy allows cities 
to go to the voters for operating or equipment levies. Gazewood reviewed the list of 
equipment replacement schedules provided by Paige. Gazewood further reviewed the 
fiscal impact this purchase would have on the General Fund. 
 Paige noted that he is looking at the big picture for the Fire Department, and added 
that if the first out engine is not replaced; the opportunity is gone; and problems could be 
created without at least one new engine. 
 Swanson asked what would happen if the truck is not purchased and the current first 
out engine is disabled. Paige stated that the first out fire engine has to be a high priority 
for the city, and higher than some other needs of other departments.  
 Busby stated that the city is spending more money than it is bringing in, and that has 
to stop at some point. 



 Beemer noted that he saw the response from the art community when it was 
suggested that the city sell the VAC. He added that someone’s feelings will be hurt 
because Council has to make tough decisions regarding money. 
 Roumagoux asked about obligating future City Council’s, and Gazewood noted that 
the purchase of the fire engine would bind the Council at that debt level for five years. 
 Paige asked whether it would be legal to use levy monies to satisfy this debt, and 
Gazewood noted that he does not think the proceeds could be used to pay off debt, but 
that he would research that issue. 
 Allen noted that Paige and Gazewood have different valid perspectives. He added 
that he is not disputing the importance of the equipment for a functioning Fire 
Department, but that in his position, he has to look at the entire city organization, and 
there are two valid issues butting heads. He added that he tends to look at things more 
like Gazewood, although he does not dispute the validity of what Paige is advocating 
for. He stated that this is not an easy decision, but Gazewood is making important points 
in making decisions beyond Fire Department issues. 
 Paige stated that he has not been asked questions regarding apparatus from the 
Infrastructure Task Force. Allen asked why the department heads could not use 
Gazewood’s expertise and develop a plan for the replacement of rolling stock that can 
meet the needs of all departments for five to ten years. Smith noted that it would be 
great to see how one departmental request affects other departments and how the city 
can purchase all the necessary rolling stock. Paige asked why the fire stations and 
equipment are not included as part of the city’s infrastructure. 
 Gross noted that departments pay for equipment differently. Gazewood noted that 
equipment in the water and sewer funds could impact the General Fund if the water and 
sewer fees in lieu of are removed from the General Fund.   
 Saelens noted that he would like nothing better than to grant the request for the new 
fire engine, adding that Paige and Gazewood presented valid perspectives. He stated 
that this is a tough decision, and he supports a more deliberate planning process. 
 Allen stated that he cannot support the proposed motion because Council and staff 
need to take a more comprehensive look at the city organization; and develop a more 
comprehensive plan for rolling stock and its financing. He added that he does not like 
piecemeal purchases, and suggested staff work with Gazewood and return to Council 
with a plan on how to proceed with purchases of rolling stock. 
 Beemer agreed with Allen. 
 Sawyer disagreed with Allen noting that this is a unique situation and there is a need 
for the fire engine. He noted that he supports the purchase. 
 Swanson expressed support for the purchase of the fire engine. 

MOTION was made by Swanson, seconded by Sawyer, that staff be authorized to 
lease/purchase one 2013 H&W demonstrator fire engine (#22428) for $401,425 and 
hereby declare a 1994 International/KEM fire engine as surplus property, and accept 
staff’s finding that trading in the 1994 engine will promote the public interest and 
probably result in a higher net return than if sold by a competitive bid process, and trade 
it in for a $10,000 credit toward the sale price of the new fire engine. Those voting aye in 
a voice vote were Swanson and Sawyer. Voting nay in a voice vote were Allen, Beemer, 
Busby, Roumagoux, and Saelens. The motion failed. 
 

RESUME CITY COUNCIL MEETING 



 
COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
 Sawyer reported that Gabe Wilson has been a wonderful addition to the Destination 
Newport Committee. He expressed appreciation for the time she has given to the city. 
 Saelens reported that he attended the employee barbecue. 
 Saelens reported that he will participate in the upcoming Bon Sante event at the 60+ 
Activity Center. 
 Busby reported that he attended the half marathon, and noted that it was a 
successful event benefiting the aquatic center. 
 Busby reported that he had attended the recent Airport Committee meeting, and that 
members of the Committee are rewriting the business plan and developing an initial set 
of minimum standards. 
 Busby noted that Council had talked about developing a task force to review 
business licenses and building codes. Allen noted that this task force would be a 
discussion item on the October 7 agenda to develop a scope of work, define the 
membership, and establish timelines. 
 Beemer reported that he had attended the employee barbecue. 
 Beemer reported that he, Miranda, Garbarino, Murphy, Paige, and Smith had 
attended the Red Cross honor event in Salem that recognized Chris Rampley as a local 
hero. 
 Beemer reported that he had attended the Wildish preconstruction meeting with 
Gross and work is scheduled to begin this week on the repair of Big Creek Road. 
 Allen reported that the Infrastructure Task Force met and discussed projected 
infrastructure needs. He noted that the Task Force will meet on Thursday, October 10 
and 31, November 7 and 21, with a final meeting on December 5 and a recommendation 
at the first Council meeting in January 2014. 
 Allen reported that he attended the employee barbecue. 
 Allen reported that he attended a recent meeting of the City Employee Committee at 
which there was a good discussion. He noted that this was John Baker’s last meeting 
with the CEC. He added that Smith could prepare a letter to Baker, if Council wishes, to 
let Baker know that his services are completed. 
 Allen noted that the Audit Committee is scheduled to meet September 23, and that 
he will check with Gazewood and Linda Brown to determine the time of the meeting. He 
noted that the most recent edition of the “Local Focus” has an article regarding audit 
committees. 
 Allen noted that Council had not yet received the monthly invoice from LGLG. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:49 P.M. 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    Sandra N. Roumagoux, Mayor 
 



 

   

Ted Smith 

Interim City Manager 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

169 S.W. Coast Hwy. 

Newport, OR  97365 

t.smith@newportoregon.gov 

 

 
Interim Manager’s Report 
Through October 4, 2013 

 

 

Following is the Interim City Manager’s report for the period ending September 13:  

 

Interim City Manager/Staff Interactions 

The Interim City Manager met with the following individuals (some on multiple 

occasions) during this reporting period:   

Linda Brown, Melissa Roman, Lance Vanderbeck, Terry Durham, Chuck 

Norman, Chief Phil Paige, Bob Gazewood, Jim Protiva, Kay Eldon, Tim Gross, 

Derrick Tokos, Tim Gross, Jim Salisbury 

 

In addition, the Interim City Manager met with the following employee groups: 

Airport staff, Finance staff, Library staff, Library Supervisors, Parks & Rec 

Supervisors, Department Heads  

  

Committee Attendance 

The Interim City Manager met with the following committees, task forces or sub groups: 

Parks & Recreation 

 

Citizens, Clubs and Other Organizations 

The Interim City Manager met with the following people, groups of people or 

organizations: 

Rotary Club of Newport, Chamber of Commerce 

 

On September 17, and 18, the Interim City Manager participated in telephone interviews 

that involved sixteen applicants.   

 

On September 17, the Interim City Manager and Department heads met at the Water 

Treatment Plant for their bi-monthly meeting.  We are holding these meetings at a 

different department each month to give department heads a more rounded understanding 

of the various departments, their responsibilities and needs.  At this meeting department 

heads were also involved in discussing how to plan for future rolling stock replacement.  

There’s no silver bullet here; Police and Public Works have their rolling stock 



replacements already planned into each year’s budget.  Replacing Fire Department rolling 

stock is more problematic as it entails purchasing many very expensive pieces of 

equipment.   

 

On September 23, the Interim City Manager met with the Board of the Oregon Coast 

Council for the Arts (OCCA) to talk about the recent discussions concerning the possible 

sale of the Visual Arts Center.  The purpose of this meeting was to make sure that lines of 

communication were open and that no walls were being built.  The OCCA Board 

reiterated that they want to continue the great partnership we’ve shared over the years. 

 

On September 26, 27 and 28, the Interim City Manager attended the 88th Annual 

Conference of the League of Oregon Cities.  I attended the following workshops: 

1. The Moment of OH! A Strategy for High-voltage Public Decision Making. 

2. Trade Reception – Vendors and Networking 

3. Thursday Keynote Speaker – Jim Hunt and “Amazing Cities” 

4. Beachball Management: Survival Skills for Managers and Public Officials 

5. Ethics: What You Need to Know About Oregon’s Ethics Laws 

6. Fraud: It Could Happen to You 

7. Affordable Housing: How Your City Can Fit In 

8. Saturday Keynote Speaker – Lowell Catlett and “Imagining the World of 2020” 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Ted Smith 
 



 

Project Status Memo - ATJ  10-07-13 

 Memo 

To: Ted Smith, Interim City Manager and City Council 

From: Ted Jones, PE, Sr. Project Manager 

Date: October 7, 2013 

Re: Capital Projects Status Update 

 
 
 Project: Ash Street Design and Construction 
Project Number:  2010-003 
 Status:  Light poles complete. 
 Next Task:  Close out the project. 
 Budget:  $557,000         
 Description:  Design and construct Ash Street between SE 40th St. and SE Ferry Slip 

Road.  
 
 Project:  Big Creek Road Landslide Repairs   
Project Number:  2011-003   
 Status:  Contractor has mobilized, performed preliminary clearing, and is adjusting their 

work methods to handle site specific issues.  
 Next Task:  Initiate the drilling for retaining wall’s piles/supports. 
 Budget:  $750,000         
 Description:  This project will restore Big Creek Road. A January of 2011 storm caused 

portions of the road to slide away, making the road unsafe for vehicles and 
jeopardizing a buried water main and electrical and telecommunications 
overhead transmission lines. This project is 75% funded through FEMA and 
25% through IFA (Oregon).     

 
 Project: Lower Big Creek Reservoir Drawdown Pipe Repair  
Project Number:  2012-012 
 Status:  The repair is in operation. 
 Next Task:  Waiting for delivery on the downstream valve operator and repair diver to 

adjust/remove the existing upstream slide gate. 
 Budget:  $160,000 
 Description:  Repair a structurally deficient and functionally obsolete 30-inch corrugated metal 

outfall pipe with a 24-inch HDPE Liner and structural grout. 
  
  



Project Status Memo - ATJ  10-07-13 Page 2 of 2 
 October 2, 2013 
 

 
 Project: Agate Beach/NE 71st Waterlines and Lakewood Hills Pump Station 
Project Number:  2011-018 and 2012-013 
 Status:  Pre-construction meeting with WW Construction on 01 October 2013.    
 Next Task:  Estimated construction start date for the 71st St. waterline is 15 October 2013.  
 Budget:  $1.3 MM  
 Description:  Installing a new water distribution pipeline along US-101 in the Agate Beach 

area and along NE 71st St for Phase 1 of the NE 71st St. Water System 
Improvements Project.  The Lakewood Hills Pump Station which will improve 
performance and reliability for pressure and fire flow. 

 
 Project: Jeffries Creek Culvert Installation 
Project Number:  none 
 Status:  Culverts installed the week of September 16th. 
 Next Task:  None, project completed.  
 Budget:  $15,000  
 Description:  City staff violated fish passage regulations by adding additional rock to the 

service road leading to the main water tanks behind the City pool.  To avoid a 
citation, the City agreed to install larger culverts to improve fish passage in 
Jeffries Creek. 

 





























 



Page 1 of 2 

 Agenda Item # IX.A.  
 Meeting Date October 7, 2013  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Public Hearing and Possible Adoption of Ord. No. 2060 Annexing Property Owned by Spy, LLC 
and Withdrawing said Property from the Newport Rural Fire Protection District and Lincoln County Library District  
 
Prepared By: Derrick Tokos Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    

 
ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not an application filed by Spy, LLC conforms with 
city and state requirements governing the annexation of real property and, if so, whether it is in the public interest to 
bring the property into the corporate limits of the city with a I-1/“Light Industrial” zoning designation. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the City Council approve the annexation request and zone 
change by adopting Ordinance No. 2060. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION:  I move for reading by title only of Ordinance No. 2060, an ordinance annexing territory to 
the City of Newport, withdrawing the annexed territory from the Newport Rural Fire Protection District and Lincoln 
County Library District, and establishing zoning for the annexed territory and that the Mayor be authorized to sign the 
ordinance following review by the City Attorney. 
 
KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  On August 27, 2013 property owner Spy, LLC (Gregory 
Palser, registered agent) submitted an application to annex property into the city limits and withdraw property from 
several districts, and to amend the Newport Zoning Map to adopt a City zone designation for the annexed property of 
I-1/"Light Industrial."   
 
The applicant indicates that they are seeking annexation so that their warehouse and office can be connected to City 
sewer service, which was recently extended and is now available to properties in the area.  The subject properties are 
identified as 4535 S Coast Hwy (Lincoln County Assessor’s Map 11-11-20-BD Tax Lot 1400) and 4541 S Coast Hwy 
(Lincoln County Assessor’s Map 11-11-20-BA Tax Lot 1300) and a portion of US 101 right-of-way. 
 
Criteria for an annexation are listed in Newport Municipal Code Section 14.37.040, which provides that the owners 
must consent in writing to the annexation, that the affected territory be within the acknowledged urban growth 
boundary, and that the territory to be annexed is contiguous to the existing city limits.  The criteria for a zoning map 
amendment are listed in Newport Municipal Code Section 14.36.010.  They require findings that the proposed zoning is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Map, furthers a public necessity, and promotes the general welfare. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed requests on September 23, 2013.  Gregory Palser, 
representing Spy, LLC was the only party to testify at the hearing.  The Commission voted unanimously to recommend 
approval.   
 
Required notice was provided to the Department of Land Conservation and Development on September 6, 2013.  For 
the Planning Commission public hearing, notification was provided in accordance with the Newport Municipal Code 
Section 14.52.060(C).  This included direct mail notice to surrounding property owners, City departments and other 
public agencies and utilities, and other individuals on August 29, 2013.  Notice of the public hearing was also published 



Page 2 of 2 

in the Newport News-Times on September 13, 2013.  For the City Council hearing, notice was also provided as 
required pursuant to ORS 222.120(3), which calls for the notice to be published once each week for two successive 
weeks prior to the day of the hearing.  This occurred in the Newport News-Times on September 25, 2013 and October 
2, 2013.  The statute also requires that notice of the hearing be posted in four public places in the city.  This 
requirement was met with postings at the Newport City Hall, Lincoln County Courthouse, Newport Public Library and 
Newport Recreation Center.    
 

OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  None.   
 

CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  This request is not related to any adopted Council goals. 
 

ATTACHMENT LIST: 

 Draft Ordinance with exhibits and attachments 

 Public Notice of the October 7, 2013 hearing 
 

FISCAL NOTES:  The property owner will be subject to city taxes which will offset the cost of services the City will 
be providing to the property.  Therefore, there should be no fiscal impact. 



 

 

Page 1. Ordinance No.    2060    (Annexation, Withdrawal, and Zoning of property owned by Spy, L.L.C. – File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13) 

 

 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  _ 2060 _  

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF NEWPORT, 

WITHDRAWING THE ANNEXED TERRITORY FROM THE LINCOLN 

COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT AND NEWPORT RURAL FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT AND ESTABLISHING ZONING FOR THE ANNEXED TERRITORY 

 

Summary of Findings: 

 

1. A request (Newport File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13) was filed by the owners of real property (Spy, 

LLC, Gregory Palser, registered agent) to annex property into the city limits and withdraw 

property from several districts, and to amend the Newport Zoning Map to adopt a City zone 

designation for the annexed property of I-1/"Light Industrial."  The request includes a portion of 

US 101 right-of-way. 

 

2.  The Planning Commission of the City of Newport, after providing the required public 

notification, including the notification to the Department of Land Conservation & Development, 

held a public hearing on September 23, 2013, for the purpose of reviewing the proposed requests 

and providing a recommendation to the City Council.  The Planning Commission public hearing 

was held in accordance with the appropriate provisions of the Newport Zoning Ordinance, and, 

after due deliberation and consideration of the proposed changes, the Planning Commission 

voted to recommend that the City Council approve the property owner’s request. 

 

3.  The City Council of the City of Newport, after provision of the required public notification, 

held a public hearing on October 7, 2013, on the requested annexation and withdrawal, and the 

zoning of the property to be annexed. 

 

4.  The City Council made a determination after considering the recommendation of the Planning 

Commission, and the evidence and argument presented at the public hearing and in the record, 

that each of the requests were in compliance with the applicable criteria and voted to approve the 

requested annexation, withdrawal, and zoning designations.  

 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  ANNEXATION, WITHDRAWAL, AND ZONING 

 

 A. Annexation.  The following described territory (illustrated in Exhibit "A") is hereby 

annexed to and incorporated within the City of Newport, Oregon: 
 

Beginning at the ¼ corner common to sections 17 and 20, Township 11 South, Range 11 West, Willamette 

Meridian, Lincoln County, Oregon; thence South 00°58’33” West, 1127.47 feet to the northeast corner of 



 

 

Page 2. Ordinance No.    2060    (Annexation, Withdrawal, and Zoning of property owned by Spy, L.L.C. – File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13) 

Parcel 2, Partition Plat 11-1990, Lincoln County Plat Records; thence South 87°52’45” West, along the north 

line of said Parcel 2, 80.46 feet; thence North 78°40’12” West, 185.54 feet to a point on the easterly line of the 

Oregon Coast Highway, said point also being the northwest corner of said Parcel 2; thence South 25°09’00” 

West, along said easterly line, 93.85 feet; thence North 88°16’59” West, leaving said easterly line, 87.19 feet to 

a point at the east corner of that property described in Book 186, Page 132, Lincoln County Book of Records, 

said point also being on the westerly line of  the Oregon Coast Highway; thence South 25°09’00” West, along 

said westerly line, 21.80 feet to a point on the east corner of that property described in said Book 186, Page 

132; thence South 88°16’59” East, leaving said westerly line of the Oregon Coast Highway, 87.19 feet to a 

point on the easterly line of said Oregon Coast Highway; thence South 25°09’00” West, 317.35 feet to the 

southwesterly corner of that property described in Book 397, Page 2234, Lincoln County Book of Records; 

thence East along the south line of said Book 397, Page 2234, 440.24 feet, to the south east corner thereof; 

thence North 00°58’33” East, 358.53 feet, to the northeast corner of said Parcel 2 and to the point of beginning. 

 

This parcel contains 3.063 acres, more or less. 

 

B. Withdrawal.  The property annexed to the City of Newport, as described in Section 1 

(A) above, is hereby withdrawn from the Lincoln County Library District and the Newport Rural Fire 

Protection District, such withdrawal being deemed to be in the best interest of the City of Newport.  

The City of Newport also hereby elects to assume the liabilities and indebtedness, if any, against the 

property so withdrawn from the Lincoln County Library District and Rural Fire Protection District 

and further elects to assume such liability to the Lincoln County Library District in the manner 

provided by ORS 222.520(2)(b). 

 

C. Zoning.  Ordinance No. 1308 (as amended) adopting the City of Newport Zoning Map 

is hereby amended to provide for a zone designation on the Zoning Map for the property annexed to 

the City of Newport by designating the subject property described in Section 1(A) above with the 

zone designation of I-1/"Light Industrial".   

 

Section 2.  The findings attached as Exhibit "B" are hereby adopted in support of the annexation, 

withdrawal, and zoning designations as adopted in Section 1. 

 

Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after passage. 

 

Date adopted and read by title only:  _____________________ 

 

 

Signed by the Mayor on  __________________, 2013. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Sandra Roumagoux, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder 
 



Lincoln County government use only.  Use for any other purpose is entirely at the risk of the user.  
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes.  Users should review the primary information sources to ascertain their usability.

Printed 10/03/2013 

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Ordinance No. 2060Spy,LLC Annexation(File 2-AX-13/3-Z-13)

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
New Zoning:

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
I-1/"light Industrial"



 

 

Ordinance No.   2060    / Exhibit "B" / Findings and Conclusions for File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13 1 

EXHIBIT "B" 

Findings for Requested Annexation of Property, Withdrawal from the Newport Rural Fire 

Protection District and the Newport Library District, and Establishment of a Zoning 

Designation 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1.  The application for annexation, withdrawal, and zoning designation (Newport File No. 2-AX- 

13/3-Z-13) was filed by Spy, LLC (Gregory Palser, authorized agent) on August 27, 2013.  The 

application included consideration of a request to: (1) annex approximately 3.063 acres of real 

property into the Newport city limits; (2) amend the City of Newport Zoning Map to establish an 

I-1/“Light Industrial” zoning designation for the subject property consistent with the existing 

Newport Comprehensive Plan designation of Industrial (which allows for either I-1, I-2/“Medium 

Industrial,” or I-3/ “Heavy Industrial”); and (3) withdraw said territory from the Newport Rural 

Fire Protection District and the Lincoln County Library District. 

 

2.  The applicant indicates that they are seeking annexation so that their warehouse and office can 

be connected to City sewer service, which was recently extended and is now available to 

properties in the area. 

 

3.  The property subject to the request is identified as 4535 S Coast Hwy (Lincoln County Assessor’s 

Map 11-11-20-BD Tax Lot 1400) and 4541 S Coast Hwy (Lincoln County Assessor’s Map 11-11-

20-BA Tax Lot 1300) and a portion of US 101 right-of-way. 

 

4.  The legal description of the area to be annexed is as follows: 
 

Beginning at the ¼ corner common to sections 17 and 20, Township 11 South, Range 11 West, Willamette 

Meridian, Lincoln County, Oregon; thence South 00°58’33” West, 1127.47 feet to the northeast corner of 

Parcel 2, Partition Plat 11-1990, Lincoln County Plat Records; thence South 87°52’45” West, along the 

north line of said Parcel 2, 80.46 feet; thence North 78°40’12” West, 185.54 feet to a point on the easterly 

line of the Oregon Coast Highway, said point also being the northwest corner of said Parcel 2; thence South 

25°09’00” West, along said easterly line, 93.85 feet; thence North 88°16’59” West, leaving said easterly 

line, 87.19 feet to a point at the east corner of that property described in Book 186, Page 132, Lincoln 

County Book of Records, said point also being on the westerly line of  the Oregon Coast Highway; thence 

South 25°09’00” West, along said westerly line, 21.80 feet to a point on the east corner of that property 

described in said Book 186, Page 132; thence South 88°16’59” East, leaving said westerly line of the 

Oregon Coast Highway, 87.19 feet to a point on the easterly line of said Oregon Coast Highway; thence 

South 25°09’00” West, 317.35 feet to the southwesterly corner of that property described in Book 397, 

Page 2234, Lincoln County Book of Records; thence East along the south line of said Book 397, Page 

2234, 440.24 feet, to the south east corner thereof; thence North 00°58’33” East, 358.53 feet, to the 

northeast corner of said Parcel 2 and to the point of beginning. 

 

This parcel contains 3.063 acres, more or less. 

 

5.  Staff reported the following information regarding the requests: 

 

 A.  Plan Designation:  The subject properties are within the Newport Urban Growth 

Boundary and are designated as “Industrial” on the Newport Comprehensive Plan Map. 



 

 

Ordinance No.   2060    / Exhibit "B" / Findings and Conclusions for File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13 2 

 

 B.  Zone Designation:  City of Newport zoning is established at time of annexation.  

Either the I-1/“Light Industrial”, I-2/“Medium Industrial”, or I-3/ “Heavy Industrial” zone 

designations are consistent with Comprehensive Plan designation of Industrial.  The 

applicant is requesting the I-1 zone designation.  The County designation for the property 

is currently I-P/ “Planned Industrial.” 
 

 C.  Surrounding Land Uses:  Surrounding land uses in the immediate vicinity include 

light and heavy industrial and public land uses. 
 

 D.  Topography and Vegetation:  The property is moderately sloped and largely devoid of 

vegetation. 
 

 E.  Existing Residences/Buildings:  one 40’ x 120’ shop building, three 48’ x 48’ 

warehouses, one 40’ x 48’ warehouse, and one 40’ x 40’ dock building. 
 

 F.  Utilities: Currently receiving city water service.  Sewage is managed via an on-site 

septic system.  The owner intends to connect to city sewer once the property is annexed. 
 

 G.  Development Constraints:  None known. 
 

 H.  Past Land Use Actions:  None known. 
  

 I.  Notification:  Required notice to the Department of Land Conservation and 

Development was mailed on September 6, 2013.  For the Planning Commission public 

hearing, notification in accordance with the Newport Municipal Code Section 

14.52.060(C) requirements included mailing notice to surrounding property owners, City 

departments and other public agencies and utilities, and other individuals on August 29, 

2013.  The notice of public hearing in the Newport News-Times was published on 

September 13, 2013. 
 

 In accordance with Oregon Revised Statute 222.120(3), notice of the October 7, 2013 

City Council public hearing was published once each week for two successive weeks 

prior to the day of the hearing, such notice occurring in the Newport News-Times on 

September 25, 2013 and October 2, 2013.  Notice of the hearing was also posted at the 

Newport City Hall, Lincoln County Courthouse, Newport Public Library and Newport 

Recreation Center for this same period of time.    

 

6.  Written comments in response to the public notice were received from the Newport Police 

Department and Oregon Department of Transportation.  The Newport Police Department 

indicated that they do not object to the proposal, but would ultimately like to see all of that 

portion of US 101 in South Beach between the bridge and airport annexed into the City. This 

would help them resolve jurisdictional issues.  The Oregon Department of Transportation 

advised that they have no objections to the proposal.   

 

7.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed requests on September 23, 

2013.  Gregory Palser, representing Spy, LLC was the only party to testify at the hearing.  The 

Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval with the I-1/“Light Industrial” zone 

designation. 



 

 

Ordinance No.   2060    / Exhibit "B" / Findings and Conclusions for File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13 3 

 

8.  The City Council held a public hearing on the proposed requests on October 7, 2013.  A 

Planning Staff Report, dated September 19, 2013, was submitted to the City Council.  The 

Planning Staff Report and attachments as follows are hereby incorporated into the findings: 
 

 Attachment "A" – Applicant Request 

 Attachment "B" – Notice of Public Hearing and Map 

 Attachment "C"– Aerial Photo of Area to be Annexed 

 Attachment "D" – Newport Zoning Map 

 Attachment "D-1" – Uses allowed in the I-1, I-2, and I-3 zones 

 Attachment "D-2" – Intent of Zoning Districts 

 Attachment "E" – Legal Description of the Area to be Annexed 

 Attachment "F" – Copy of ORS 222.170 and ORS 222.524 

 Attachment "G" – September 18, 2013 email from ODOT 

Attachment "H" – Comments from Newport Police Department, dated September 9, 2013 

 Attachment "I" – Email from John Pariani, dated September 23, 2013 

 Attachment "J" – Draft September 23, 2013 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

9.  At the October 7, 2013, public hearing, the City Council heard a staff report and allowed for 

testimony and evidence to be given on the proposed requests.  Following the close of the public 

hearing, the Council deliberated and voted to approve the requests.  The minutes of the October 

7, 2013 public hearing are hereby incorporated by reference into the findings. 
 

10.  The applicable criteria for each of the requests are as follows:   
 

A. For the annexation/withdrawal portion of the requests, Newport Municipal Code 

Section 14.37.040 provides “The required consents have been filed with the City; the 

territory to be annexed is within the acknowledged urban growth boundary (UGB); and the 

territory to be annexed is contiguous to the existing city limits.”   
  

B.  For the zoning map amendment portion of the requests, the applicable criteria per 

Newport Municipal Code Section 14.36.010 are “Findings that the proposed zoning is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Map, furthers a public necessity, and promotes the 

general welfare.” 

 

11.  Scott Branchfield, Lead Digital Cartographer, Lincoln County Assessor’s Office, reviewed 

the legal description for the area to be annexed and notes that the Department of Revenue may 

take issue with its quality.  See Attachment "I" (Email from John Pariani, dated September 23, 

2013).  John Pariani, a licensed surveyor, prepared the legal description and concludes that it can 

still be valid.  He also notes that there may be a property boundary overlap along the east side of 

the Spy, LLC properties.   

 

CONCLUSIONS 

 

1.  In regard to the criteria for approval of the annexation request under Newport Municipal Code 

Section 14.37.040 the City Council concludes as follows: 

 

A. In regard to the first criterion (The required consents have been filed), the City  



 

 

Ordinance No.   2060    / Exhibit "B" / Findings and Conclusions for File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13 4 

Council concludes that pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 222.170(2), the City 

need not hold an election on the annexation of contiguous territory if it receives the 

consent of more than 50 percent of the owners of land in the territory, and such owners 

own more than 50 percent of the land area within the territory.  ORS 222.170(4) further 

notes that publicly owned real property, such as US 101, that is exempt from ad valorem 

taxes, shall not be factored into the calculus outlined above.  The applicant owns both tax 

lots, which account for the bulk of the property subject to this request (i.e. all but the 

small portion of the US 101 highway right-of-way).  The applicant has provided signed 

consent forms requesting that the properties be annexed.  See Attachment "A" (Applicant 

Request).    
 

B. In regard to the second criterion (the territory to be annexed is within the 

acknowledged urban growth boundary (UGB)), The City Council concludes that the 

property is currently within the Urban Growth Boundary pursuant to the 

Comprehensive Plan Map of the City of Newport and is designated "Industrial."   
 

C.  In regard to the third criterion (the territory to be annexed is contiguous to the 

existing city limits), the City Council concludes that the subject territory is contiguous 

to the existing city limits along the west side of US 101 as graphically depicted on 

Exhibit "A."   
 

2.  In regard to the withdrawal request, the City Council finds that there are no applicable 

criteria and the withdrawal of the property from the Newport Rural Fire Protection District 

and the Lincoln County Library District occur during annexation when the City of Newport 

becomes the service provider within the city limits. 
 

3.  In regard to the establishment of a City of Newport zone designation upon annexation, the  

City Council concludes as follows for establishment of an I-1/“Light Industrial” zone designation 

in regard to the applicable criteria from Newport Municipal Code Section 14.36.010 (Findings 

that the proposed zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Map, furthers a public 

necessity, and promotes the general welfare.): 
 

A.  The Comprehensive Plan designation of Industrial is implemented by either the I-

1/“Light Industrial” zone, I-2/“Medium Industrial” zone, or I-3/ “Heavy Industrial” 

zone.  The applicant intends to connect an existing office and warehouse to city 

sewer.  They also have plans to construct one or more storage/warehouse buildings for 

a fiber optic construction company, which conforms to the I-1 designation.  

Therefore, the applicant is requesting an I-1 zoning designation.  The uses permitted 

outright and conditionally in the I-1, I-2, and I-3 zones are included as Attachment 

"D-1" (Uses allowed in the I-1, I-2, and I-3 zones).  The intent of the I-1, I-2, and I-3 

zoning districts is included as Attachment "D-2" (Intent of Zoning Districts). 
 

B.  Currently, the abutting property within the City limits immediately to the west of 

the subject property is designated with a P-2 zone designation.  The property to the 

northeast within City limits is designated I-3; and the properties to the southwest and 

to the south are designated I-1.  See Planning Staff Report Attachment "D" (Newport 

Zoning Map).   

 



 

 

Ordinance No.   2060    / Exhibit "B" / Findings and Conclusions for File No. 2-AX-13/3-Z-13 5 

C. This property has been designated in the Newport Comprehensive Plan as 

Industrial, and the I-1 zone is consistent with that designation. The Comprehensive 

Plan Map reflects the policy direction contained in the Newport Comprehensive Plan, 

including an Urban Growth Boundary that sets out the City’s buildable land needs for 

a 20-year planning period, so it is appropriate to conclude that the application of a 

zone designation in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan would further a public 

necessity and promote the general welfare. 

 

D.  Further, the South Beach Urban Renewal District recently funded the extension of 

sewer service from SE 40th Street to SE 50th Street.  This was done to facilitate 

further development of industrial properties situated along the US 101 corridor, 

including the subject site.  Annexing the property so that it can be connected to this 

newly extended service is consistent with the objectives of the District and promotes 

the general welfare by facilitating connection to a waste disposal system that can more 

readily meet the needs of a growing industrial development. 

 

E.  Lincoln County Assessor’s Office concerns with regards to the adequacy of the 

legal description are attributed to the vague language contained in the deed for Tax 

Lot 1400 (Page 2234 at Book 397 of the Lincoln County Microfilm Records).  It is 

the City’s understanding that the legal description, prepared by a licensed surveyor, 

accurately reflects the area to be annexed and the ownership of the property described 

herein.  In the event the Oregon Department of Revenue rejects the description, or 

Spy, LLC seeks to clarify the boundary of its ownership in a manner that is 

inconsistent with this legal description, then further action may be required by the 

City.  

 

OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 Based on the staff report and attachments, the application material, and other evidence 

and testimony in the record, the City Council concludes that the requested annexation, 

withdrawal, and zone designations comply with the criteria established for approval of each of 

the requests under the applicable criteria as explained in the findings.  The requested annexation, 

withdrawal, and establishment of a zone designation are hereby APPROVED.  





































































































 



Page 1 of 2 

 Agenda Item # X.A.  
 Meeting Date October 7, 2013  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Re-envisioning the City’s Role in Supporting the Visual Arts 
 

Prepared By: Derrick Tokos  Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    
 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not the City should encourage the arts community 
to undertake a visioning process to explore the role that public resources should play in supporting the visual arts.  
Public feedback would inform the Council’s upcoming budget discussions. The Visual Arts Center would serve as the 
venue for collecting information, and Oregon Coast Council for the Arts staff would be responsible for soliciting input 
and presenting the feedback and recommendations at a future Council meeting.    
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   If the Council believes that this approach will provide the type of meaningful 
public feedback that it needs to inform its decision making on whether or not to proceed with a discussion about 
potentially selling the Visual Arts Center, or entertain other alternatives in advance of the next budget cycle, then staff 
recommends it provide direction to initiate the process. 
 

MOTIONS FOR ADOPTION:  I move that the Council direct the City Manager to coordinate with staff at the 
Visual Arts Center to put in place a process for soliciting public input on the City’s role in supporting the visual arts.  
The process should address the questions discussed tonight, with information being presented to the Council no later 
than its first regular meeting in March of 2014. 
 

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  The Visual Arts Center (VAC) at 777 NW Beach Drive is 
owned by the City of Newport and managed by the Oregon Coast Council for the Arts (OCCA) as a public art 
exhibition space.  It is also used for art education programs and provides meeting space for the general public.  The 
property is zoned C-2/“Tourist Commercial.” 
 

The building was originally constructed in 1982 by the Newport Urban Renewal Agency.  An addition was constructed 
in 1990 and the property was conveyed to the City of Newport in 1992.  Annual expenses the City incurs to operate the 
building range between $60,000 and $90,000 a year, and will likely exceed $100,000 this fiscal year as a result of 
unforeseen maintenance issues primarily associated with the elevator.  OCCA management fees, utilities, cleaning 
expenses, and insurance are costs the City incurs in addition to maintenance expenses.  Annual revenues range between 
$7,500 to a little over $10,000 a year and are largely attributed to the rental of space at the facility.  The VAC is situated 
in the heart of Nye Beach and possesses panoramic views of the Pacific Ocean.  Lincoln County Assessment Records 
list a market value in excess of $2.5 million, although this figure includes some unrelated city assets (public staircases, 
excess land, etc.).   
 
Escalating maintenance costs attributed to the age of the VAC and budget limitations that may prevent the City from 
maintaining the building in a condition suitable for its current use are factors that suggest it is timely to discuss whether 
or not it is in the public interest for the City to own and subsidize a visual arts center.  It is also relevant to consider that 
provision of gallery space for artists to display and profit from the sale of their works is often accommodated through 
private sector or non-profit ventures as opposed to public entities, and that the property the VAC is situated on may be 
put to better use if transitioned out of City ownership. 
 
The Newport Urban Renewal Agency funded the construction of a number of public buildings including the Visual 
Arts Center, Library, Recreation Center, Performing Arts Center, Abbey Street Pier and Pier Building, City Hall, and the 



Page 2 of 2 

Bayfront Boardwalks.  Urban renewal funds were used to remodel and renovate these facilities; however, with the 
recent closure of the northside urban renewal district that funding source is no longer available and has not been 
replaced with other resources.  This is another reason why it is timely for the City to take a critical look at whether or 
not it can continue to support a facility such as the VAC, or if it might be best to sell the property. 
  
The local arts community and other members of the public have a vested interest in the VAC and should be afforded 
an opportunity and time to re-envision the City’s role in supporting the visual arts.  This could lead to new ideas being 
put on the table for how some of the listed concerns could be addressed and may chart a course for how overall 
community support for the visual arts might be strengthened.  Key questions that should be considered include: 
  

 What role should the City of Newport play in supporting the visual arts? 
 

 Is it in the “public interest” for the City to own and subsidize a Visual Arts Center, or might that need best be 
accommodated by private or non-profit interests or in another facility? 

 

 If the City elects to surplus the Visual Arts Center property should stipulations be placed on the sale of the 
property to ensure that the resulting use complements Nye Beach? 

 

 If it is in the “public interest” that the City continue to own the Visual Arts Center then where will the funding 
come from to maintain the building in a manner in which it needs to be maintained? 

  
Conducting a visioning process at the Visual Arts Center that seeks input from members of the public with direct ties to 
the facility may result in the Council receiving feedback that is not entirely representative of the views of the larger 
community.  Opportunities for broader community engagement should be considered as the process unfolds.   
 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  One option would be for the city to proceed with a hearings process 
to determine if it is in the public interest to sell the Visual Arts Center.  While that may still take place, this interim step 
affords interested persons an opportunity to explore other options and alternatives that may preclude the need for the 
sale of the Visual Arts Center or may inform how that conversation moves forward. 
 
CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Pursuing strategic property acquisitions and sale of city assets is a Council goal. 
 
ATTACHMENT LIST:   

 Summary of Visual Arts Center revenues and expenditures for the past three years   

 Current OCCA management agreement for the Visual Arts Center 
   
FISCAL NOTES:  Outreach would be conducted by staff at the Visual Arts Center in consultation with the City 
Manager’s Office.  City has a management agreement in place with OCCA to staff the VAC and the scope of the 
outreach effort can be tailored so that the demands it places on OCCA staff are within the realm of what is 
envisioned under the agreement.  



Visual Arts Center Revenue/Expenditures

Revenues:
FY 10/11 $7,503.50
FY 11/12 $10,307.00
FY 12/13 $9,252.00

Expenses:1

FY 10/11 $89,381.53
FY 11/12 $68,932.84
FY 12/13 $62,435.51

Upcoming Repairs2 $89,780.00

2 Includes repairs to the elevator, fire alarm system, door locks, flooring, windows, 
interior/exterior paint, plumbing, lighting and HVAC system.  City staff has 
identified points of water intrusion into the interior of the building, but has not yet 
identified the cause or extent of the problem.  Therefore, it is not possible to 
estimate the cost of those repairs at this time.

1 Includes OCCA management expenses, utilities (phone, alarm, electricity, gas, 
garbage, water/sewer (not billed)), cleaning, insurance, maintenance and repairs.















 



Page 1 of 1 

 Agenda Item # X.B.  
 Meeting Date October 7, 2013  
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
City of Newport, Oregon 

 
 
Issue/Agenda Title Consideration of the Need to Partition the Visual Arts Center Property______________________ 
 

Prepared By: Derrick Tokos  Dept Head Approval:  DT   City Mgr Approval:    
 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:  Consideration of whether or not it is in the public interest to partition the Visual 
Arts Center (VAC) property at 777 NW Beach Drive so that the structure and associated parking areas are situated on 
one parcel of land. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Staff recommends the Council proceed to partition the property.  The partition 
process can parallel discussions about the future of the Visual Arts Center and it is a step that the City should take 
irrespective of whether or not the City Council ultimately decides to sell the building since the current property 
configuration is also an impediment to any significant remodeling of the structure.  
 

MOTIONS FOR ADOPTION:  I move that the Council direct the City Manager to proceed with preparing a 
partition plat for the Visual Arts Center building and associated parking areas and to authorize the mayor to sign the 
plat once it is approved and ready to be recorded. 
 

KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:  The Visual Arts Center (777 NW Beach Drive) and its 
associated parking areas are situated on parts of four separate deeded pieces of land, with the building straddling 
property lines. There is also a small piece of County owned property surrounded by the City’s ownership (Tax Lot 
10398).  The totality of the City’s ownership is larger than the Visual Arts Center and its parking areas, including public 
staircases, restrooms, and beachfront property.   
 

Partitioning the property would allow for the Visual Arts Center and its parking areas to be placed on a parcel of land 
separate from the public staircases, restrooms and beachfront property.  This would help position the property for sale 
if that is a course of action the City Council ultimately pursues.  Partitioning the property in this manner would also 
resolve property line encroachments which make it difficult to remodel the building under current land use and building 
codes.  The small piece of land owned by the County appears to have resulted from errors in past conveyances.  Staff is 
working with the County to get this property deeded to the City.  A partition plat is a land use action and should the 
process proceed there would be public notice and opportunity to comment prior to a decision being made, pursuant to 
Chapter 13.05 of the Newport Municipal Code.  
 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:  Leaving the property in its current condition.   
 
CITY COUNCIL GOALS:  Pursuing strategic property acquisitions and sale of city assets is a Council goal. 
 
ATTACHMENT LIST:   
 Map illustrating existing property boundaries 
 Title report for the property 
 
FISCAL NOTES:  The Community Development Department has sufficient budgeted funds to cover the expense 
of partitioning the property. 



Lincoln County government use only.  Use for any other purpose is entirely at the risk of the user.  
This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for, or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes.  Users should review the primary information sources to ascertain their usability.

Printed 10/03/2013 

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Visual Arts Center and Associated Properties777 NW Beach Drive



Western Title & Escrow Company
255 SW Coast Highway, Suite 100

Newport, OR  97365
Office Phone: (541) 265-2288

Office Fax:  (541) 265-9570

PUBLIC RECORDS REPORT

THIS REPORT IS FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF:

City of Newport
Attention:  Derrick Tokos
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR  97365

Date Prepared:  September 06, 2013

Report Number:  79684A

Fee:  $0.00

CONDITIONS, STIPULATIONS AND DEFINITIONS
(I) Definitions:

"Customer": The person or persons named or shown on this cover sheet.(a)
"Effective date": The title plant date of August 29, 2013.(b)
"Land": The land described, specifically as by reference, in this public record report and (c)
improvements affixed thereto which by law constitute real property.
"Liens and encumbrances": Include taxes, mortgages, and deeds of trust, contracts, (d)
assignments, rights of way, easements, covenants, and other restrictions on title.
"Public records": Those records which by the laws of the State of Oregon impart constructive (e)
notice of matters relating to said land.

(II) Liability of Western Title & Escrow Company:

THIS IS NOT A COMMITMENT TO ISSUE TITLE INSURANCE AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A (a)
POLICY OF TITLE INSURANCE.
The liability of Western Title & Escrow Company for errors or omissions in this public (b)
record report is limited to the amount of the fee paid by the customer, provided, however, 
that Western Title & Escrow Company has no liability in the event of no actual loss to the 
customer.
No costs of defense, or prosecution of any action, is afforded to the customer. (c)
In any event, Western Title & Escrow Company assumes no liability for loss or damage (d)
by reason of the following:

Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing 1.
authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the public records.
Any facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the public records but which 2.
could be ascertained by an inspection of the land or by making inquiry of persons in 
possession thereof.
Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, which are not  shown by the public 3.
records.

Public Records Report Page 1 of 5



Report Number:  79684A

Discrepancies, encroachments, shortage in area, conflicts in boundary lines or any other 4.
facts which a survey would disclose.
(i)Unpatented mining claims; (ii) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts 5.
authorizing the issuance thereof; (iii) water rights or claims or title to water.
Any right, title, interest, estate or easement in land beyond the lines of the area specifically 6.
described or referred to in this report, or in abutting streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, 
ways or waterways.
Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to building and 7.
zoning laws, ordinances or regulations) restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating to (i) 
the occupancy, use or enjoyment of the land; (ii) the character, dimensions or location of 
an improvement now or hereafter erected on the land; (iii) a separation in ownership or a 
change in the dimensions or area of the land or any parcel of which the land is or was a 
part; or (iv) environmental protection, or the effect of any violation of these laws, 
ordinances or governmental regulations, except to the extent that a notice of the 
enforcement thereof or a notice of a defect, lien or encumbrance resulting from a violation 
or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded in the public records at the 
effective date hereof.
Any governmental police power not excluded by (II)(d)(7) above, except to the extent that 8.
notice of the exercise thereof or a notice of a defect, lien or encumbrance resulting from a 
violation or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded in the public records at 
the effective date hereof.
Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters created, suffered, assumed, 9.
agreed to or actually known by the customer.

(III) Report Entire Contract:

Any rights or actions or rights of action that the customer may have or may bring against Western 
Title & Escrow Company arising out of the subject matter of this report must be based on the 
provisions of this report. No provision or condition of this report can be waived or changed except by 
a writing signed by an authorized officer of Western Title & Escrow Company. By accepting this 
form report, the customer acknowledges and agrees that the customer has been afforded the 
opportunity to purchase a title insurance policy but has elected to utilize this form of public record 
report and accepts the limitation of liability of Western Title & Escrow Company as set forth 
herein.

(IV) Fee:

The fee charged for this Report does not include supplemental reports, updates or other additional 
services of Western Title & Escrow Company.

Public Records Report Page 2 of 5



Report Number:  79684A

REPORT

Report Number: 79684A

Effective Date:  August 29, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.

The land referred to in this public record report is located in the County of Lincoln, State A.
of Oregon, and is described as follows:

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A"

As of the effective date and according to the public records, we find title to the land B.
apparently vested in:

The City of Newport, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon as to Parcels I, II and III and 
Lincoln County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, as to Parcel IV

And as of the effective date and according to the public records, the land is subject to C.
the following liens and encumbrances, which are not necessarily shown in the order of 
priority:

2013-2014 taxes a lien in an amount to be determined, but not yet payable.1.

As disclosed by the Tax Roll, the premises herein are not subject to assessment by reason of 2.
governmental ownership, and at any time said land is returned to private ownership, the 
property will be subject to taxation.
Account: R1023432, R519148, R121054, R125816, R519149, R519136

City liens, if any of the City of Newport.3.

Rights of public and of governmental bodies in that portion of the subject land lying below the 4.
mean high water line of the Pacific Ocean and lying within the ocean shore and the dry sand 
area as declared under the provisions of ORS 390.605 through 390.770 and as found in 
Thornton v. Hay, 254 Or 584, 452 P2d 671 (1969).
(Parcels I and III)

Any adverse claim based upon the assertion that any portion of said land was not tide, 5.
submerged or submersible land subject to disposition by the State of Oregon, or that any 
portion thereof has ceased to be submerged or submersible lands by reason of erosion or by 
reason of having become upland by accretion.
(Parcels I and III)

END OF REPORT

Any questions concerning the Public Records Report should be directed to Mickey Keeney at 541-265-
2288, or email at mkeeney@westerntitle.com.

Public Records Report Page 3 of 5



Report Number:  79684A

Order No. 79684A

Exhibit "A"

PARCEL I:

Beginning at a point 35 feet West of the Southeast corner of Lot 2, Block 12, in NYE AND THOMPSON'S 
ADDITION to the City of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon; running thence North 75 feet; thence West 
parallel with the North line of Agnes Street to the meander line of the Pacific Ocean; thence South along 
said meander line 75 feet to the North line of Agnes Street; thence East along the North line of Agnes 
Street to the Place of Beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion falling below the mean high tideline of the Pacific Ocean.

PARCEL II:

Beginning at a point 25 feet West and 75 feet North of the Southwest corner of Lot 1, Block 12, in NYE 
AND THOMPSON'S ADDITION to the City of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon; thence North 75 feet; 
thence West 95 feet; thence South 75 feet; thence East 95 feet to the Place of Beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM the South 10 feet thereof.

PARCEL III:

Beginning at a point which is 75 feet North and 120 feet West of the Southeast corner ot Lot 2, Block 12, 
in NYE AND THOMPSON'S ADDITION to the City of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon; thence North 75 
feet; thence West 10 feet; thence South 65 feet; thence West to the meander line line of the Pacific 
Ocean; thence Southerly along said meander line 10 feet, more or less, to a point from which the point 
of beginning bears East; thence East to the Point of Beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion falling below the mean high tideline of the Pacific Ocean.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion lying within N.W. Beach Drive.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM any portion lying within those parcels of land as described in Bargain and 
Sale Deed recorded October 20, 1953 in Book 160, Page 562, Lincoln County Records and in Warranty 
Deed recorded March 2, 1967 in Book 283, Page 300, Lincoln County Records and in Warranty Deed 
recorded December 2, 1971 on Book 30, Page 410, Lincoln County Records.

PARCEL IV:

Commencing at a point 25 feet West of the Southeast corner of Lot 2, Block 12, NYE AND THOMPSONS 
ADDITION, to the City of Newport, Lincoln County, Oregon; thence North 75 feet; thence West 10 feet; 
thence North 10 feet; thence West 85 feet; thence North 65 feet to the South line of Beach Street; 
thence West along the South line of Beach Street to the Meander line of the Pacific Ocean; thence 
Southerly along said Meander line, 75 feet to the Northwest corner of a tract of land sold by H. J. 
Minthorn to Brouwer and Crocker April 7, 1914 and with the buildings thereon known as The Hot Sea 
Baths; thence East along the North side of said Hot Sea Baths property to the Northeast corner thereof; 
thence South along the South side of said Hot Sea Baths property 75 feet to the North line of Agnes 
Street; thence East long the North line of Agnes Street to the Place of Beginning.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion as described in Deed recorded October 6, 1917 as Document No. 
57-53, Lincoln County Records.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM that portion described in Bargain and Sale Deed recorded August 19, 

Public Records Report Page 4 of 5



Report Number:  79684A

1975 as Document No. 58-1394, Lincoln County Records.

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM Parcel 2 as described in Warranty Deed recorded October 14, 1982 as 
Document No. 136-627, Lincoln County Records.

Public Records Report Page 5 of 5



bspores
Western

bspores
Arrow

bspores
Arrow

bspores
Arrow

bspores
Arrow

bspores
Arrow



PRIVACY POLICY NOTICE
June 1, 2005

Western Title & Escrow Company is dedicated in providing a basis of trust with you, our 
customer, and the public we serve.  With respect to the privacy expectations of today's 
consumers, and the requirements of applicable privacy laws, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act 
(GLBA) has been enacted to protect the privacy of nonpublic personal information relating to 
consumers and customers.  GLBA generally prohibits any financial institution, directly or 
through its affiliates, from sharing nonpublic personal information about you with a 
nonaffiliated third party unless the institution provides you with a notice of its privacy 
policies and practices.

We are providing you with this document, which notifies you of our privacy policies and 
practices.  We reserve the right to change this Privacy Policy Notice from time to time 
consistent with applicable privacy laws.

In the course of our business we may collect nonpublic personal information about you from the 
following sources:

Information we receive from you, such as your social security number and information from ·

applications or other forms we receive from you or your authorized representatives;
Information about your transaction we secure from our files, or from our affiliates or others;·

Information from our or other internet web sites;·

Information we receive from a consumer reporting agency·

Information we receive from others involved in your transaction, such as the real estate ·

agent or lender; and
Information from the public records maintained by governmental entities that we either ·

obtain directly from those entities, or from our affiliates or others.

We may disclose any of the above information that we collect about our customers or former customers 
to our affiliates or to nonaffiliated third parties as permitted by law.

We also may share your personal information:

to agents, lenders, brokers or representatives to provide you with the services you ·

requested; and
to third-party contractors or service providers who provide services or perform marketing or ·

other functions on our behalf.

In addition, we will disclose your personal information when you direct or give us permission, when we 
are required by law to do so, or when we suspect fraudulent or criminal activities.  We also may 
disclose your personal information when otherwise permitted by applicable privacy laws such as when 
disclosure is needed to enforce our rights arising out of any agreement, transaction or relationship with 
you.

We restrict access to nonpublic personal information about you to those employees who need to know 
that information in order to provide products or services to you.  We maintain physical, electronic, and 
procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to guard your nonpublic information.

GLBA-WTE Disclosure

Orig. 07/01/2001; Rev. 06/01/05



Exhibit

PRIVACY POLICY
June 1, 2005

Title V of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA) generally prohibits any financial institution, directly or 
through its affiliates, from sharing nonpublic personal information about a consumer with a 
nonaffiliated third party unless the institution provides the consumer with a notice of its privacy policies 
and practices, such as the type of information that it collects about the consumer and the categories of 
persons or entities to whom it may be disclosed.

Financial institutions can include title insurance companies, title insurance agents, survey companies, 
attorneys, appraisers, flood certification providers, and other providers of settlement services on 
residential transactions.

In compliance with the GLBA, we do not share nonpublic personal information about a consumer with a 
nonaffiliated third party, unless allowed by law.

In compliance with the GLBA, our privacy practices regarding nonpublic personal financial information 
of consumers and customers (as defined by GLBA) are as follows, subject to any exceptions as 
permitted by law.

We protect nonpublic personal information of customers and consumers.·

We allow access on need to know basis only.  Only company personnel who need to know ·

can access the information.  Examples may include accounting personnel, title examiners, 
title underwriter personnel, auditors, escrow closers and their assistants, management, 
scanning personnel, and claims related investigation personnel, including but not limited to 
retained counsel.
We allow customers and consumers to review their nonpublic personal information that we ·

have collected, and we allow them to provide us with requests for amendment or deletion of 
such information, to which we will reasonably respond.
We require consent from a proper party to the transaction to provide nonpublic personal ·

information relating to their transaction, which includes closed transactions.
We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with law to guard ·

the nonpublic personal information.  We allow only authorized personnel to review the 
information, and we keep closed files in secure storage, with limited access, or we store the 
files on computer with limited password access.
We generally do not keep copies of credit reports, loan applications, and tax returns on ·

consumers and customers.
If we share starter title information, we don't share nonpublic personal information, such as ·

sales price (unless it is public information), policy numbers, or amount of insurance on 
owner's policies issued to customers.
We don't share nonpublic personal information, such as social security numbers and bank ·

account information, as may be shown on affidavits of indemnity, instructions to escrow, or 
as may be provided by a principal lender, broker or real estate agent.
We periodically inform our personnel about our policy.·

We don't share nonpublic personal information with independent contractors, unless they ·

have a need in the processing of the transaction as allowed by law.

Dated:  June 1, 2005
Western Title & Escrow Company

GLBA-WTE Privacy Notice

Orig. 07/01/2001; Rev. 06/01/05



c.breves
Typewritten Text
X.C.














































	1 AGENDA 10-7-2013
	2 Proclamations
	2 Proclamations
	2 Proclamations
	Shake out Proclamation

	Airport Proclamtion

	3 a September 9, 2013 - Special City Council Meeting Minutes
	3 b September 11, 2013 Special Meeting Minutes
	3 d September 30, 2013 Specity City Council Meeting
	3 e WS September 16 2013
	3 f September 16, 2013
	4 Manager's Report October 4, 2013
	5 Project Status Memo - ATJ  10-07-13
	6 City Manager's Evaluation Infomration
	7 CAI Summary - Spy LLC Annexation
	7a File 2-AX-13 Ordinance
	7b File 2-AX-13 Exhibit A map
	7c File 2-AX-13 Exhibit B findings
	7d Attachments
	Attachment Part 1
	Attachment Part 2
	Attachment Part 3
	DOC005

	7e Public Notice - Council Hearing
	8 CAI Summary VAC Re-envisioning for 10-7-13 cc mtg
	8a VAC_cost_100313
	8b OCCA Management Agreement
	9 CAI Summary VAC Partition for 10-7-13 cc mtg
	9a VAC_map
	9b VAC_Title Report
	rep
	mp
	Western PP

	10 Ordinance No. 2058



